
CITY OF NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 Monday – October 3, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

Deborah Graham, 
Position 1 
 

Amy Hollinger 
Position 2 
 
Arnold Haberstroh, 
Position 3 
 
Amy Morris 
Position 4 
 
Scott Collins 
Position 5 
 
Bryan Morris 
PW/CD Director   
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

    

  
 

 

 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. CALL TO ORDER 

 
III. ROLL CALL 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDAS – As present 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 

1) Planning Commission Workshop Meeting – September 19, 2022 
2) Planning Commission Meeting – September 19, 2022 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Transportation Benefit District Funding Authority Information  
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VIII. CONSIDERATION 
 

IX. CITIZEN COMMENTS- Non-agenda items 
 

X. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Meeting is held in person and via Teleconference. 

Teleconference Information 

Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

Access code: 8460198 

To join the online meeting: 

https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

http://www.cityofnapavine.com/


NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION 

WORKSHOP MINUTES 

                      September 19, 2022 5:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

 

School Impact Workshop Discussion : 5:00 pm 

Commissioner Graham opened the workshop meeting at 5:00 pm.  
Napavine Superintendent Shane Schutz - Superintendent of Napavine School District, growth is a good thing but 
from a school district perspective with how the school is funded through bonds and such, the buildings are full. 
That is why he has come to planning and council to maybe reinstate prior impact fees or come up with a plan to 
address the issues. Currently working on running another bond, but not many have passed in other districts in the 
prior years. Looking to reevaluate the fee through mitigation or impact fee.    
Commissioner Hollinger – Stated that when the school district receives the information of the project, why isn’t 
the school district reaching out? Why have they not run for a bond in 12 years?  
Superintendent Shane Schutz – Stated he found out about the project on Facebook. Last bond that was ran in 
2015 and it failed at 68 percent. Such then we had a lot of change in administration, then covid hit. When he 
started, he realized they lost the window to run again.  
Commissioner Morris – Why doesn’t the school encompass the Rush Road exit; all the revenue goes to Chehalis.  
Superintendent Shane Schutz – Stated the reason why the school district couldn’t go is because there were no 
students in that area, to change those boundaries, it must be changed by a resident within the boundaries. Which 
there is none. He claimed that the school district would only gain 4 cents per 100,000.   
Commissioner Graham – If the city has anyway to help you, it would be with that. That should be   
Director Morris – Has a possible solution with having a student within those boundaries that may be able to start 
that request.  The school district used to provide the city a form that was included in the new water applications 
that would ask the new applicant how many school age children, what grades, etc. We would collect them and 
then give them to the school so they could track new enrollment. Regarding Impact fees there is a whole bunch of 
school action items that are in place to do mitigation, which a lot of the financial cost is on the school. And since 
the school district boundary encompasses more than just the city, are they going to do a fee requirement for the 
county?  
Commissioner Hollinger – What would be the kid count be if they took all the choice students out? Would you still 
be at full capacity? 
Superintendent Shane Schutz – Would lose support staff, it changes the structure on what you have for personnel. 
There is a formula on how you employee your employees. Less paras.  
Commissioner Hollinger - We can’t get federal or state funding for future growth but if the school was under/or at 
capacity without those students that would make a big difference.  
Superintendent Shane Schutz – Has 100 choice students, 770 students’ total. Don’t have the count for what 
students live inside the city limits only. Has rejected the most out of district students in the county, hence why the 
housing is tight because people know that to enroll you must live in Napavine. We must find a way to handle the 
growth. 
Director Morris – Has watched it change in the last few months, developers are already sitting on stuff, if we do 
impact fees it will be even worse.  
Commissioner Haberstroh – Impact isn’t the answer, you won’t collect enough to be able to do anything with it. 
There must be another way.  
Superintendent Shane Schutz – He believes with mitigation that there are less strings attached on what you can 
use it for.   
Commissioner Haberstroh – It would be a good idea to get a hold of Joe Clark, he has done an outstanding job 
finding additional resources.  
Commissioner Morris – Asked what the reason was they won’t deny choice students at this point?  At the school 
she works at they denied every single choice student because they don’t have the capacity.  
Superintendent Shane Schutz – We are getting to the point where we may need to start denying the students that 
have been going to the school since third grade. We are trying to see those students through their education, but 
we are getting to the point where the policy numbers are making it difficult to not deny.   



Napavine Planning Commission Workshop Meeting 
September 19, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 

City of Napavine is an equal opportunity provider and employer 

Commissioner Morris – At a parent standpoint running for a bond, I would ask are you going after the rush road 
deal, or just sitting back and waiting on that? Are you going after other things instead of denying choice students 
and taking on Napavine? Are you just going after my money or addressing the needs of Napavine? 
Director Morris – Would love to see the numbers on how many kids are inside the city. Have noticed a lot more 
elderly citizens moving in.  
Executive Assistant Katie Williams – Need to move in the right direction, the city can’t control any development 
that happens outside of the city.  
Director Morris – Knows a lot about impact fees, but nothing about mitigation. Needs to get his feet wet on 
mitigation. 
Commissioner Haberstroh – The word mitigation goes over a lot better than any other word. 
Commissioner Graham – Set up another workshop meeting for November 7th at 5pm.  
 
Commissioner Graham closed the workshop meeting at 5:50 pm. 
 
 

 

NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

                      September 19, 2022 5:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 
These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online at 

https://fccdl.in/jDnxDd4CsV . 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Bryan Morris, Community Development/Public Works Director            Planning Commission Chairperson 



NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

                      September 19, 2022 5:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chairwoman Commissioner Graham opened the regular planning commission meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

ROLL CALL:   
Planning Commission present: Amy Morris, Commissioner #4, Deborah Graham Commissioner #1, Amy Hollinger 
Commissioner #2, and Arnold Haberstroh Commissioner #3. Commissioner Hollinger motioned to excuse 
Commissioner Collins Position #5, seconded by Commissioner Haberstroh. Vote on Motion 3 aye 0 nay.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As presented:   
Commissioner Haberstroh motioned to amend the agenda to add under consideration Commercial District Tax, 
seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote on motion 3 aye, 0 nay. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

Commissioner Hollinger motioned to approve minutes for August 29, 2022, meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Morris. Vote on motion 3 aye and 0 nay. 

NEW BUSINESS:  

225 2nd Ave NE – Ben Clapa Rezone Application 
Director Morris summarized the prior history with Planning Commission and council. Discussion continued on why 
a rezone would be necessary when its common in that area to have a residential home/use in that area. 
Commissioner Morris motioned to deny the rezone application, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote on 
motion 3 aye, 0 nay. 

CONSIDERATION:  

Commercial District Tax  
Commissioner Haberstroh asked if the city could research making the area down by the freeway at Rush Road 
(Exit 72) a Commercial Tax District.  It wouldn’t impact the citizens, instead it would impact the travelers. Director 
Morris stated it would allow a tenth of a percent tax increase for the commercial district at the exit. It would still 
keep the city at one of the lowest sales tax in the state. Director Morris stated Castle Rock was able to implement 
it. Planning Commission discussed maybe doing 71 also, but there isn’t a clear line to be drawn at exit 71, like 
below the bridge at exit 72. Director Morris will research and provide an update at the next meeting on October 3, 
2022.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 6:46 pm 

Commissioner Hollinger motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Morris. Vote 3 ayes, 0 nays. 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online at 
https://fccdl.in/jDnxDd4CsV . 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Bryan Morris, Community Development/Public Works Director            Planning Commission Chairperson 

https://fccdl.in/jDnxDd4CsV























	10.3.2022 PC Agenda
	9.19.2022 PC WORKSHOP Minutes 
	9.19.2022 PC Minutes 
	Transportation Benefit District Funding Authority Information

